WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

BETLEY is one of the smallest and pleasantest market towns in the county, consisting of one wide street, on the Nantwich road, in the Union, and 7 miles W. N. W. of Newcastle-under-Lyme, and 3 miles S. S. E. of Basford Station, near the confines of Cheshire, the boundary line between the two counties extending here through the middle of a fine lake of 80 acres, called Betley Mere, and abounding in pike, perch, and other fish, some of which have been caught as heavy as 30 lbs.  The appearance of the houses is uncommonly neat, and the town is greatly ornamented by two very handsome seats, which occupy the grounds in its immediate neighbourhood, viz., Betley Hall and Betley Court, the former of which is the residence and property of George Tollet, Esq., and the latter of Fras. and T. F. Twemlow, Esqrs.  The parish contains about 1480 acres of land, and 884 inhabitants.  Mr. Tollet is lord of the manor, and the other principal proprietors are Sir T. F. F. Boughey, who has a large estate here, and the Earl of Wilton, who owns Betley Mere.  The market on Friday has long been of such trivial consequence, that it may be said to be obsolete; but here are three fairs for cattle, etc, on July 31st and the last Tuesdays in April and October.  The parish wake is on the first Sunday after October 6th. The CHURCH (St. Margaret,) was one of the oldest in the county, but in 1841 – 1842, it was renovated and enlarged, and the nave rebuilt, at the cost of more than £1200.  It has a tower and five bells.  The chancel was rebuilt in 1610, and the tower in 1713.  The nave and aisles were the most ancient parts, and were separated by four plain pointed arches on each side, resting on rude pillars, which were “merely single trunks of trees,” and the architraves of the arches plain curved pieces of wood.  The whole has been rebuilt of stone.  In the chancel are several neat mural monuments of the Egerton and Tollet families.  The Church was anciently appropriated to Ranton Abbey, and is now a perpetual curacy, valued at £150, in the incumbency of the Rev. Henry Turton, who was appointed in 1819.  George Tollet, Esq., is the patron, and also impropriator of the tithes.  There is a neat Parsonage House; and in 1717 the benefice  was augmented with 20 acres of common land, given by Lord Powlett and others, and with £200 of Queen Anne’s Bounty.  The Wesleyans have a small chapel in the town; and the parishioners have the benefit of an endowed school, and several small benefactions.  A yearly rent-charge of £4. 4s., for apprenticing poor children of Betley is paid out of land called the Rushy Heys, being purchased for that purpose with £75, left in 1674 by William Palmer.  The poor parishioners have the following yearly doles, viz., 10s. as the interest of £10, left by Joseph Cope, in 1692; 40 shillings for bread, 30 shillings for clothing, and 40 shillings for schooling, left by Mary Lea; 10 shillings to the poor and 10 shillings to the school, left by Marmaduke Jolley; 10 shillings for bread, left by Richard Gorton; and 4 shillings for bread, left by William Abnet.  The SCHOOL was rebuilt partly by subscription in 1826, and has four acres of land, let for £4 a year, which with the small benefactions of Lea, Steele, and Jolley, forms its whole endowment.  It is now conducted as a National School, and in it is kept a parochial library.

Wrine Hill, one mile S. by W. of Betley, is a scattered village on an eminence, partly in this parish, but mostly in that of Wibunbury, in Cheshire.  It was anciently the seat of the Egerton family; and between it and Betley is Ravenshall, containing a number of detached houses.

Marked 1, are at Ravenshall;  2, at Wrinehill; and the rest at Betley.

Post office at Joseph Knapper’s. Letters despatched 4. 30 afternoon via Newcastle.

Adams Mr Brittain, gentleman

2 Aldersea Mr John

Armstrong John Knight, surgeon

2 Brassington Joseph, toll collector

Clubbe Mrs

Dean Thomas & Nephew, drapers, etc

Ford Mary and Fox Charlotte, dress makers

Gould Miss Ellen

Hall Mr Alex

Harrison Samuel, gardener, etc, Common

2 Hewitt Mr Benjamin

1 Johnson Mrs

Hill Joseph, cow leech

Holland John, cattle dealer

Keen Mr William

Knapper Joseph, postmaster

Littler Charles, joiner, etc

Massey George, revenue officer

Moore Mrs Ann

Moore George, clerk and Mary, straw hat maker

Phillips John, gardener

Redfern John, civil engineer and land surveyor

Reeves William Henry druggist, etc

Rigby John, miller, Bowsy Wood

Salmon Mrs

1 Salt Mrs Elizabeth

Shaw William, saddler

Shufflebotham William, draper and grocer

Swinnerton William, gardener, etc

Swinnerton Mrs Margaret

Tollet George Esq., Betley Hall

Tooth Rev. George C., B.A. curate

Turton Rev. Henry incumbent, (absent)

Twemlow Fras. Esq., Betley Court

Twemlow Thomas Fletcher, Esq., Betley Court

Twemlow Mrs Catherine

Warburton John, surgeon

Warham John, builder

1 Wear Mr William

Wilme Richard, M.D.

1 Wrench Thomas, builder and timber merchant

Academies

(* take Boarders)

*Grocott James, Wrinehill

Naylor Thomas, Ravenhall

National School, James Edwards and Harriet Gater

*Ratcliffe Misses J. & C., Grove House

Inns and taverns

Black Horse Inn, Jeremiah Williams

1 Hand and Trumpet, John Dean

2 Lord Nelson, John Summerfield

2 Red Lion, John Kendrick

Swan Inn, Joseph Warham

Three Anchors, Ann Leighton

Blacksmiths

2 Summerfield J.

White Joseph

Boot and shoemakers

Brownsword George

Ralph Edward

Smith John

2 Weaver Charles

1 Weaver Daniel

2 Weaver Ralph

Butchers

1 Hockenhull James

Mountford Adam

Farmers

1 Brassington G.

Brassington Thomas

Burchall Richard

Dean Thomas, maltster

1 Dean Joseph

Robinson John

1 Shufflebotham James, maltster

Timmis Charles

1 Wilson Thomas

1 Wrench Thomas

Plumbers, painters and glaziers

Warham Joseph

Warham Thomas

Shopkeepers

(* also Bakers)

*Bowers John

*Brassington W.

1 Cooper Thomas

Malpass W. cooper

Shufflebotham W.

Swinnerton W.

Tailors

Cork Hugh

Gater Samuel

Gibbons Henry

Wheelwrights

1 Bagnall John

Gater James

Lindop Samuel, ( and millwright)

Carrier

John James (mail cart) from the Black Horse to Newcastle daily 4.30 afternoon.

